









FASD Prevention & Health Promotion Resources Training

for health professionals working with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities

Participant Workbook

September 2017



In the spirit of respect, Menzies School of Health Research acknowledges the people and the elders of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Nations who are the traditional owners of the land and seas of Australia.

Where the term Indigenous is used throughout this manual we include all Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people and acknowledge their rich traditions and heterogeneous cultures.

Title: FASD Prevention & Health Promotion Resources Training: Participant Workbook

Copyright

© 2017 Commonwealth of Australia as represented by the Department of Health

This work is copyright. You may copy, print, download, display and reproduce the whole or part of this work in unaltered form for your own personal use or, if you are part of an organisation, for internal use within your organisation, but only if you or your organisation:

(a) do not use the copy or reproduction for any commercial purpose; and

(b) retain this copyright notice and all disclaimer notices as part of that copy or reproduction.

Apart from rights as permitted by the Copyright Act 1968 (Cth) or allowed by this copyright notice, all other rights are reserved, including (but not limited to) all commercial rights.

Requests and inquiries concerning reproduction and other rights to use are to be sent to the Communication and Change Branch, Department of Health, GPO Box 9848, Canberra ACT 2601, or via e-mail to <u>copyright@health.gov.au</u>.

Preferred citation:

Menzies School of Health Research, Ord Valley Aboriginal Health Service, National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation, Telethon Kids Institute (2017), FASD Prevention & Health Promotion Resources Training: Participant Workbook. Menzies School of Health Research.

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

O

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

2

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

Acknowledgements

The Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) Prevention and Health Promotion Resources Package was developed by:

- Menzies School of Health Research
- Ord Valley Aboriginal Health Service (OVAHS)

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

- National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO)
- Telethon Kids Institute (TKI)

We are grateful for the support and experience from OVAHS Board of Directors and CEO. The willingness of OVAHS employees, Jane Cooper and Jenni Rogers, to share their knowledge and expertise has been integral to the development of this training package.

The Project Team would especially like to thank the staff, management and board members from New Directions Mothers and Babies Services across Australia who participated in the piloting of this training package and provided valuable feedback.

Funding

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

The project partners gratefully acknowledge the funding received from the Australian Government Department of Health (2015-2017) for the development of the FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources Package.

3

 \bigcirc

Contents

Introduction	5
The FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources Project	5
Training aims and overview	6
Introduction Module	7
Module 1: What is FASD?	12
Module 2: Brief Interventions and Motivational Interviewing	34
Module 3: Monitoring and Evaluating	55
Module 4: Sharing Health Information	71
Networks	94
Helpful websites	95
Appendix 1: Standard drinks quiz	96
Appendix 2: Motivational Interviewing Summary Sheet	99
Appendix 3: Women want to know – Information for health professionals on assessing alcohol consumption in pregnancy using AUDIT-C	100
Appendix 4: FASD Education Program Plan	103
Appendix 5: FASD Support Services	105
Appendix 6: Scenarios for Module 4	106

Introduction

Welcome to the Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) Prevention & Health Promotion Resources Participant Workbook. This workbook and the associated training workshop were developed as part of the FASD Prevention & Health Promotion Resources Project.

The FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources Project

This work was funded by the Australian Government Department of Health and complements activities resulting from the Commonwealth Action Plan to reduce the Impact of Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders (FASD) 2013-14 to 2016-17.

The Australian Government Department of Health contracted Menzies School of Health Research, in partnership with the National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) and the Telethon Kids Institute (TKI), to develop and implement a flexible, modular package of FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources (FPHPR). The Resource Package aims to reduce the impact of FASD in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander populations. The FASD prevention model presented in this training package is based on the Ord Valley Aboriginal Health Service (OVAHS) FASD Prevention Program which originated in 2008. OVAHS is a Community Controlled Aboriginal Health Service which operates out of Kununurra, in the East Kimberley region of Western Australia.

The training module content was developed in 2015, by the Project Team and Training Facilitators with input from the Steering Group members and Expert Advisory Group members. The modules were piloted in five training workshops across Australia throughout 2016. In early 2017 the modules were revised and updated to reflect new evidence and feedback from the health professionals who attended the pilot workshops.

The FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources Package includes:

- i. Five training modules
- ii. A Facilitator Manual
- iii. A Participant Workbook
- iv. A collection of culturally appropriate resources for health service staff to use with communities. These resources are categorised according to five key target groups:

5

- Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander women who are pregnant
- Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander women of childbearing age
- Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander grandmothers and Aunties

- Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander men
- Primary Health Care staff
- v. A Resource Directory.

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

Training aims and overview

The training is made up of five modules that can be delivered individually in separate sessions or together as a two-day workshop. This Participant Workbook contains the slides and handouts from all five modules.

Introduction: FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources Training Package

- Module 1: What is Fetal ASD?
- Module 2: Brief Intervention and Motivational Interviewing
- Module 3: Monitoring and Evaluating
- Module 4: Sharing Health Information.

The overall aim of the training is to enable health services to develop and implement community-driven strategies and solutions to reduce the impact of FASD by increasing:

- i. Awareness of FASD, and the impact of drinking alcohol, smoking tobacco and substance misuse during pregnancy (Module 1).
- ii. Knowledge and skills to tailor the use of FASD health promotion and education resources, in line with health service capacity and community needs (Modules 2 and 3).
- iii. Awareness of, and access to, FASD health promotion and education resources that promote current Australian recommendations and are appropriate for use with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities (Module 4).

Certificate of Attendance

Each participant will receive a Certificate of Attendance at completion of the workshop. The certificate will list the amount of contact hours the participant completed. Participants should keep the certificate and their workbook as evidence of their attendance. This participant workbook may be used towards continuing professional development.

0 0 0 0 0 0

 \bigcirc

 \odot \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

0

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

0 0 0 0 0

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

6

Introduction Module

My learning goals for this workshop

Goal	



•	Welcome to Country
•	House keeping
•	Introductions
•	What would you like to gain from this training?
•	Pre-workshop survey

Overview

Introduction

Module 1: What is 'Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder'?

Module 2: Brief intervention and motivational interviewing

Module 3: Monitoring and evaluating

Module 4: Sharing health information

Training aims

To enable health services to develop and implement community-driven strategies and solutions to reduce the impact of FASD by increasing:

- i. Awareness of FASD, and the impact of drinking alcohol, smoking tobacco and substance misuse during pregnancy Module 1
- Knowledge and skills to tailor the use of FASD health promotion and education resources, in line with health service capacity and community needs Modules 2 and 3
- Awareness of, and access to, FASD health promotion and education resources that promote current Australian recommendations and are appropriate for use with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities Module 4



Looking after yourself

Some of the content in this training may cause you distress.

Please feel free to take time out if you need to.

See the Helpful Websites section of your Participant Workbook for the contact details of support agencies eg NOFASD Australia and the Russell Family Fetal Alcohol Disorders Association.

		FASD PREVENTIO	IN AND HEALTH PROMO	DTION RESOURCES				6
0000	00000	000	000	000	0 0	00	000	000
0000	0000	000	000	000			00	00





 \bigcirc

<u> </u>	 	
<u> </u>	 	
<u> </u>	 	

Introduction Module References:

1. Bridge (2011). Ord Valley Aboriginal Health Service's fetal alcohol spectrum disorders program: Big steps, solid outcome. Australian Indigenous Health Bulletin 11(4).

Introduction Module Further Reading and Additional Information:

Selected national initiatives addressing FASD in Australia since 2012.

- 2012 Final report from the House of Representatives Standing Committee into FASD was tabled in parliament, titled "FASD the hidden harm – Inquiry into the Prevention, Diagnosis and Management of Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders".
- 2013 In response to the national inquiry, the Commonwealth Government released a FASD Action Plan "Responding to the Impact of Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders in Australia–A Commonwealth Action Plan 2013-14 to 2016-17." Funding of \$20 million over 4 years was allocated to this plan. One of the targeted measures in the plan included supporting prevention and management of FASD within Indigenous communities and families in areas of social disadvantage.
- 2014 The Commonwealth National Action Plan was launched in June 2014. An additional \$9.2million was announced for work in a range of areas such as the development of a diagnostic tool, establishment of a Technical Network and further research into best practice. The development of this training package was also funded under this initiative.

For more a detailed timeline of events from 2008 to 2012 see the NOFASD website http://www.nofasd.org.au/Default.aspx?PageID=10531062&A=SearchResult&SearchID=946 67000&ObjectID=10531062&ObjectType=1

 $\circ \circ \circ \circ \circ \circ$

 \odot \odot

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

00000000000

11

O

Module 1: What is FASD?

My learning goals for this workshop

Goal	





 \bigcirc

12

 \bigcirc

"...Relax, its not a big deal..."

How much alcohol is a safe to drink while you're pregnant?

Do you have to think twice about alcohol before you're pregnant?

What advice do women receive about drinking while pregnant? Where do they get this advice from?

Are there mixed messages about alcohol during pregnancy?

Why might some women drink (or smoke or take drugs) while they are pregnant?

What is FASD?

How would you explain FASD to your clients or community members?

Fetal – baby in the belly

Alcohol – any grog, even low alcohol content

Spectrum - broad range, like a rainbow

Disorders - messed up, disarray





13

 \bigcirc

	FASD with 3 sentinel facial features	FASD with less than 3 sentinel facial features
Prenatal alcohol exposure	Confirmed or unknown	Confirmed
Neurodevelopmental domains - brain structure - motor skills - cognition - language - academic achievement - memory - attention - executive function - affect regulation - adaptive behaviour, social skills or communication	Severe impairment in at least 3 neurodevelopmental domains	Severe impairment in at least 3 neurodevelopmental domains
Sentinel facial features	Presence of at least 3 facial features	Presence of 0, 1 or 2 facia features















Primary disability	Secondary condition	Defensive behaviours
Learning and memory difficulties	Trouble with authorities, lying, defiance	Making things up to fill in the blanks
Impulsiveness	Destructive behaviour, stealing	Anger, frustration, aggression
Difficulty linking actions and consequences	Incarceration	Running away, avoidance, depression
Social skills and relationship issues	Inappropriate sexual behaviour	Isolation, attempt to buy friends, poor self- concept
Hyperactivity	Disrupted school experience, drug use	Anxiety, fear at being constantly overwhelmed

Protective factors⁵

Some factors may reduce the impact of FASD and the development of secondary conditions:

- A diagnosis by 6 years of age
- Links with support agencies
- Living in a stable environment
- Never experiencing family violence











Effect	Cannabis		Tobacco	Alcoho
Growth restriction	х	х	х	х
Low birth weight	х	х	х	х
Physical problems			х	х
Behavioural problems		х		х
Mental illness	х	х	х	х
Small head circumference				х
Learning disabilities	х	х		х
Neonatal withdrawal	х	х	х	х
Sleep cycle disturbance	х	х	х	х





Brain damage

- Central nervous system damage (brain and spinal cord)
- · Low birth weight, premature birth,
- Physical damage, such as growth deficiencies and organ defects

Effects of teratogens during pregnancy

Teratogen (te-rat-o-gen): a substance that causes birth defects

Examples of birth defects:

Teratogens⁶







0

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

1

19

Australian Guidelines to Reduce Health Risks from Drinking Alcohol¹⁰

ADVICE FOR WOMEN WHO ARE PREGNANT OR PLANNING A PREGNANCY

- Not drinking alcohol is the safest option. · The risk of harm to the fetus is highest when there is high, frequent,
- maternal alcohol intake. The risk of harm to the fetus is likely to be low if a woman has consumed only small amounts of alcohol before she knew she was pregnant or during pregnancy.
- The level of risk to the individual fetus is influenced by maternal and fetal characteristics and is hard to predict.

VENTION AND HEALTH PRO

Australian Guidelines to Reduce Health Risks from Drinking Alcohol¹⁰

ADVICE FOR BREASTFEEDING MOTHERS

- Not drinking alcohol is the safest option.
- Women should avoid alcohol in the first month after delivery until breastfeeding is well established.
- After that:

 \bigcirc

- alcohol intake should be limited to no more than two standard drinks a day
- women should avoid drinking immediately before breastfeeding - women who wish to drink alcohol could consider expressing milk in advance.



20

Tobacco and pregnancy¹²

- 11% of women who gave birth in 2014 smoked during pregnancy.
- Of these, 22% quit during their pregnancy.
- · Some women were more likely to smoke: - 32% of women aged less than 20 years smoked (compared with 6% aged 35-39 years)
 - 20%-34% of women in very remote/remote areas smoked (compared with 8% in major cities)
 - 44% of Indigenous women smoked (compared with 12% of non-Indigenous mothers)

FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RE

What is in a cigarette?13,14

- 4000+ harmful chemicals
- · 69 chemicals are known to cause cancer (carcinogens)
- Nicotine poisonous drug that makes people addicted to smoking
- Carbon Monoxide poisonous gas produced during the burning of tobacco (also found in car exhaust fumes)
- · Tar sticky brown mixture of chemicals that stains fingers, teeth and lungs. Includes a number of cancer causing substances

Myths – Tobacco and pregnancy

- Smoking during pregnancy is not harmful
- · Roll-your-own tobacco is not as bad
- · Smoking cigarettes is better (or worse) than smoking marijuana.
- · If you are exposed to a lot of smoke from other people you may as well keep smoking.
- Smoking light cigarettes will not harm the unborn baby.
- · Smaller baby = easier labour.
- · It's worse to give up when you're pregnant, because the baby will 'stress for a smoke

21

 \bigcirc



Supporting Smoking Cessation: A guide for health professionals¹¹

Recommended smoking cessation treatment

- Pregnant women should be encouraged to stop smoking completely.
 They should be offered intense support and proactive telephone counselling.
- Self-help material can supplement advice and support.
 If these interventions are not successful, health professionals should
- consider NRT, after clear explanation of the risks involved. Those who do quit should be supported to stay non-smokers long-term.

- FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT) and pregnancy¹¹

Pregnant women:

- · Quitting should ideally be achieved without NRT.
- Gum, lozenge, sub-lingual tablet (under the tongue) or inhaler may be used.
- The risks of patches should be discussed before use.

Breastfeeding women:

· Use intermittent forms of NRT

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

· Breastfeed before use

0 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc



 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

22





We do know that ...

- FASD is entirely preventable if alcohol is not consumed during pregnancy.
- There is no cure for FASD.
- · Women, especially young women, are consuming alcohol at levels that put their health at short-term and long-term risk.
- Around half of pregnancies are unplanned.
- Around 45% of Australian women drink during pregnancy.
- . People with FASD are eligible to receive disability support, based on their level of impairment.

FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOU

We don't know...^{16,17}

How many Australian children and adults have FASD

Why?

 \bigcirc

- · Women may not seek assistance and/or fully disclose drinking behaviour during pregnancy due to stigma, fear of children being removed from their care and feelings of shame.
- A lack of understanding about FASD among the medical profession.
- · A lack of routine screening of women about their alcohol use during pregnancy and pre-conception.
- Until May 2016 there was no agreed diagnostic criteria and clinical guidelines.

ENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RES

23

Estimating FASD prevalence in Australia

<u>'Lililwan Study'</u>

Aboriginal leaders in Fitzroy Valley conducted the only FASD prevalence study in Australia – by community, for community $^{\rm 18}$

- The survey of 108 babies born in the area between 2002 and 2003.
- Estimated prevalence for FASD is 120 per 1,000 children aged seven to nine years.
- In comparison, overseas prevalence estimate is 1-3 per 1,000 births in the general population.
- Marninwarntikura Fitzroy Women's Resource Centre <u>www.mwrc.com.au/</u>

Key messages - Alcohol and pregnancy¹⁰

ADVICE FOR WOMEN WHO ARE PREGNANT OR PLANNING A PREGNANCY

- Not drinking alcohol is the safest option.
- The risk of harm to the fetus is highest when there is high, frequent, maternal alcohol intake.
- The risk of harm to the fetus is likely to be low if a woman has consumed only small amounts of alcohol before she knew she was pregnant or during pregnancy.
- The level of risk to the individual fetus is influenced by maternal and fetal characteristics and is hard to predict.

Key messages - Alcohol and breastfeeding¹⁰

ADVICE FOR BREASTFEEDING MOTHERS

- Not drinking alcohol is the safest option.
- Women should avoid alcohol in the first month after delivery until breastfeeding is well established.
- After that:

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

- alcohol intake should be limited to no more than two standard drinks a day
- women should avoid drinking immediately before breastfeeding
 women who wish to drink alcohol could consider expressing milk in advance.

Key messages – smoking cessation and pregnancy¹¹

Recommended smoking cessation treatment

- · Pregnant women should be encouraged to stop smoking completely.
- They should be offered intense support and proactive telephone counselling.
 Self-help material can supplement advice and support.
- If these interventions are not successful, health professionals should consider NRT, after clear explanation of the risks involved.
- · Those who do quit should be supported to stay non-smokers long-term.

FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

The role of health professionals^{19,20}

You have the ability to make a difference

- · Health professionals are well positioned to make a difference in alcohol use among women before and during their pregnancy
 - Women expect advice from health professionals
 - Private interactions with a level of trust
 - Have detailed knowledge of health issues
 - Personalised advice, rather than general

 \bigcirc

 Health professionals provide external authority to support women in changing drinking behaviours

VENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RES



25



Additional notes



26

Module 1 References:

- 1. Adapted from PowerPoint presentation to Menzies Health Darwin by Nancy Poole Director, BC Centre Of Excellence For Women's Health Prevention.
- 2. Bower, C., Elliott, EJ., on behalf of the Steering Group (2016). Report to the Australian Government Department of Health: "Australian Guide to the diagnosis of Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD)".
- 3. Streissguth, A. (1994). A Long-Term Perspective of FAS. Alcohol Health and Research World, 18(1) 74-81.
- Drug Education Network (2011). Living with Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder: a Guide for Parents and Caregivers. Accessed January 2017 from <u>http://beta.den2.handbuiltcreative.com/wp-content/uploads/2011/08/Living-with-FASD.2011.pdf</u>
- 5. Drug Education Network (2016). The FASD Handbook for Health Professionals. Accessed January 2017 from http://interactive.den.org.au/flipbooks/fasdhandbook/#p=1
- Things to Avoid During Pregnancy: Teratogens. Accessed January 2017 from <u>http://www.aboutkidshealth.ca/En/ResourceCentres/PregnancyBabies/Pregnancy/Healt</u> <u>hCareinPregnancy/Pages/Things-to-Avoid-During-Pregnancy-Teratogens.aspx</u>
- Stratton, K., Howe, C., and Battaglia, F. (1996). Fetal Alcohol Syndrome: Diagnosis, Epidemiology, Prevention, and Treatment. Washington, DC: Institute of Medicine, National Academy Press. <u>https://www.nap.edu/read/4991/chapter/1</u>
- 8. Colvin, L., Payne, J., Parsons, D., Kurinczuk, J. and Bower, C. (2007). Alcohol consumption during pregnancy in nonindigenous West Australian women. Alcoholism: Clinical and Experimental Research 31(2): 276–84.
- 9. Jacobson, J. and Jacobson, S. (1994). Prenatal alcohol exposure and neurobehavioral development: Where is the threshold? Alcohol Health & Research World 18:30-36.
- 10. National Health and Medical Research Council (2009). Australian Guidelines to Reduce Health Risks from Drinking Alcohol. Commonwealth of Australia. Canberra. Accessed January 2017 from <u>https://www.nhmrc.gov.au/ files nhmrc/publications/attachments/ds10-alcohol.pdf</u>
- 11. Royal Australian College of General Practice (2014). Supporting Smoking Cessation: A guide for health professionals. Accessed January 2017 from http://www.racgp.org.au/your-practice/guidelines/smoking-cessation/
- Australian Institute of Health and Welfare (2016). Australia's mothers and babies 2014. Accessed January 2017 from http://www.aihw.gov.au/publicationdetail/?id=60129557656

27

O

- 13. Bates, C., Jarvis, M. and Connolly, G. (1999). Tobacco Additives: Cigarette engineering and nicotine addiction London; Action on Smoking and Health.
- 14. US Department of Health and Human Services. (2004). The health consequences of smoking: A report of the Surgeon General Atlanta; US Department of Health and Human Services, Center for Disease Control and Prevention, National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion, Office on Smoking and Health.
- Zubrick, S., Lawrence, D., Silburn, S., Blair, E., Milroy, H., Wilkes. T., Eades, S., D'Antoine, H., Read, A., Ishiguchi, P. and Doyle S. (2004). The Western Australian Aboriginal Child Health Survey: The Health of Aboriginal Children and Young People. Perth: Telethon Institute for Child Health Research.
- 16. O'Leary, C., Nassar, N., Kurinczuk, J. and Bower, C. (2009). The effect of maternal alcohol consumption on fetal growth and preterm birth. BJOG: An International Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology 116: 390-400
- Henderson, J., Gray, R. and Brocklehurst, P. (2007). Systematic review of the effects of low-moderate prenatal alcohol exposure on pregnancy outcomes. BJOG: An International Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology 114 (3): 243-252.
- 18. Fitzpatrick, J. and Carmichael-Olsen. (2015). The Lililwan Project: Neurodevelopmental outcomes and FASD in Remote Australian Aboriginal Children.
- 19. Alcohol and Pregnancy Project (2007). Alcohol and Pregnancy: Health Professionals Making a Difference. Perth: Telethon Institute for Child Health Research.
- 20. Hunter, E., Brady, M. and Hall, W. (2000). National Recommendations for the clinical management of alcohol-related problems in Indigenous Primary Care settings. Canberra: Commonwealth Department of Health and Aged Care.
- 21. Jacobson, J., Jacobson, S. and Sokol, R. (1996). Increased vulnerability to alcohol-related birth defects in the offspring of mothers over 30. Alcoholism: Clinical and Experimental Research 20 (2): 359-63.

 \odot \bigcirc

 \odot \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

 \odot

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

28

 \bigcirc

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

Module 1 Further Reading and Additional Information:

- Slide 3: Muggli, E., O'Leary, C., Donath, S., Orsini, F., Forster, D., Anderson, P., Lewis, S., Nagle, C., Craig, J., Elliott, E. and Halliday, J. (2016). "Did you ever drink more?" A detailed description of pregnant women's drinking patterns BMC Public Health. 16:683.
- Slide 4: Telethon Kids Institute website accessed 30/11/2016 <u>https://alcoholpregnancy.telethonkids.org.au/alcohol-pregnancy-and-breastfeeding/about-fasd/</u>
- Slide 6: The Australian Guide to the Diagnosis of FASD and training modules can be accessed from <u>https://alcoholpregnancy.telethonkids.org.au/alcohol-pregnancy-and-</u>

breastfeeding/diagnosing-fasd/australian-guide-to-the-diagnosis-of-fasd/

- Slide 13: For further information on how the behaviours of children and young people with FASD can be misinterpreted Drug Education Network (2011). Living with Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder: a Guide for Parents and Caregivers. Accessed January 2017 from <u>http://beta.den2.handbuiltcreative.com/wp-content/uploads/2011/08/Living-</u> <u>with-FASD.2011.pdf</u>
- Slide 17: Transcript of Hidden Harm video

Section 1 (22min 50sec to 27min 50sec). Anne and Seth Russell.

DEB WHITMONT: Life has held few pleasures for Seth Russell and his mother, Anne. Seth Russell is 31. Until he was 17 and diagnosed with FASD by a doctor in Canada, he didn't know what was wrong with him.

Seth's school days hold little but bad memories.

SETH RUSSELL: I didn't learn anything at school. I remember a primary teacher who used to, um, grab my arm so tight that he'd leave bruises and marks on me.

ANNE RUSSELL: Because he...

 $\circ \circ \circ \circ \circ \circ$

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

SETH RUSSELL: I don't know why. I can't remember why but it was probably 'cause I didn't understand something and...

DEB WHITMONT: When Seth was born, his parents lived in a Queensland mining town. His mother, Anne, says she hates herself for what at the time was considered social drinking.

000000000000

ANNE RUSSELL: Ah, we didn't, ah, drink any more or any less than anybody there at the time. Um, when I got pregnant, um, with Seth: ah, three to four drinks, ah, two to three or four times a week. And, um, those social, um, few drinks made the difference between, um, Seth having a life that he should be leading right now and having the life that he currently does lead.

DEB WHITMONT: Anne Russell says, back in the '80s, her doctor told her there was no harm in having a few drinks in pregnancy. When she found herself with two uncontrollable children, she was told to go and take a course in parenting.

ANNE RUSSELL: Nothing seemed to make any difference: no punishment, no reward system, no o-, um, um... tough love, no- absolutely nothing worked. Um, it didn't matter if I took away a toy. It didn't matter if I said, "If you do this then I'll get you something." Nothing mattered.

They would, you know, jump on furniture, break furniture. I couldn't go out. Um, people, in fact, stopped coming around.

DEB WHITMONT: Life was equally miserable for her younger son, Seth.

SETH RUSSELL: I never knew when I was tired. I never knew I was getting tired. My brain would go a million miles an hour, constantly: 100 different things at a time. Always thinking, always running around. Um, I could never stop.

DEB WHITMONT: By his early teens, Seth was sleepless, frustrated and failing at school. He started getting into trouble, drinking and taking drugs.

ANNE RUSSELL: Um, I think he needed to have something that made his head slow down, made his mind slow. And because we didn't know what was wrong, he had a lot of stimulation. He had a lot of frustration at school 'cause he was always in trouble but he never, ever knew why. Every time the police siren, every time we saw the police go past, every time we heard an ambulance, it was Seth.

SETH RUSSELL: Um, I've had many people who were saying, "There's nothing wrong with you. Get over it." It's not the case. I look fine, I act fine. But nobody actually knows what goes on in my head. Things that, um, my brain does to me without me even wanting to. Makes life very difficult.

ANNE RUSSELL: And then when he started becoming suicidal, which was quite early in his school years, because his frustration at not being able to do what other children could do: a child suicidal at 10 is just not right.

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

30

 \bigcirc

SETH RUSSELL: I've been, ah, v- suicidal my whole life.

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

DEB WHITMONT: Do you still feel like that sometimes?

SETH RUSSELL: All the time, every day.

DEB WHITMONT: How do you stop it?

SETH RUSSELL: I don't think about it. Drugs. Drugs and alcohol.

DEB WHITMONT: Anne Russell believes that if Seth had been diagnosed sooner, she might have been able to help him avoid some of the pain of drugs and depression.

ANNE RUSSELL: Um, it just escalates from puberty on. It escalates, ah, without a diagnosis. Um, it can escalate until prison.

And prison and, or suicide are the two sort of end games, really, for, for people with FASD who haven't been diagnosed.

DEB WHITMONT: It's in Indigenous communities that FASD has been the most devastating.

So far, only one place in Australia has been brave enough to confront the extent of the problem. For the Fitzroy Valley, it was a matter of survival.

JUNE OSCAR, CEO, MARNINWARNTIKURA WOMEN'S RESOURCE CENTRE: We're a people that rely on an oral tradition, heritage. So our history, our languages, our ceremonies, our songs and dance requires us to have an ability to retain in memory all of these, ah, important things.

So if our children's brains are being damaged by alcohol, then it places at huge risk the survival of our cultures and our traditions.

(To Maureen Carter) So you're saying you could use this to...

DEB WHITMONT: Research in the Fitzroy Valley revealed one of the highest FASD rates in the world, with one in every five children now aged between 12 and 13 affected by foetal alcohol.

But even doing the study has begun to make a difference.

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

MAUREEN CARTER, CEO, NINDILINGARRI CULTURAL HEALTH SERVICES: Ah, there's a lot more awareness around, ah, the dangers of drinking during pregnancy. And a lot of our women now are abstaining from drinking alcohol.

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

31

O

DEB WHITMONT: There could be up to 300 children with FASD in the Fitzroy Valley - among them, 16-year-old Tristan Hand and his younger cousins, Quaden and Tylon.

GEOFF DAVIS, GRANDPARENT: Tristan must be the loveliest person in the world. Um, his, um disability sometimes means that he loses control of his emotions, so he can, he can, he can really lose it if he gets really anxious or something really upsets him.

(Footage of Tristan Hand riding his bicycle)

GEOFF DAVIS: Righto, show us your style, Tristan.

DEB WHITMONT: But in remote communities there are few services, little hope of a job and, so far, no strategies for the future for Tristan and hundreds of others like him.

MARMINGEE HAND, GRANDPARENT: You know, for this community, ah, one of the things that we really should be is having our, um, a strategy in place. We hope that people will understand that these children, um, are different. They are different from, um, other people and they've got needs and the, and, and we need to look after them in a certain way.

- End of transcript -

To find out more about Anne Russell's experiences and the support foundation she has established see the Russell Family Fetal Alcohol Disorders Association (rffada) <u>http://www.rffada.org/</u>

To find out more about the FASD projects by the Marninwarntikura Fitzroy Women's Resource Centre in the Fitzroy Valley <u>http://www.mwrc.com.au/</u>

Slide 25: Breastfeeding and alcohol consumption.

• The Australian Breastfeeding Association (ABA) has developed a brochure and a free app for Apple and Android devices, called 'Feed Safe'. Both provide an approximate time when the breastmilk is free of alcohol, based on body weight and number of standard drinks consumed.

https://www.breastfeeding.asn.au/bf-info/safe-when-breastfeeding/alcohol-and-breastfeeding

• There are some limitations for both the brochure and the app.

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

• The information in the brochure only provides information for women up to 86kg and up to 6 standard drinks. This is a limitation for larger women or those who have had more than 6 drinks.

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

32

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

0 0 0 0 0

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

- The app is more specific and requires you to enter your weight and height. You can also enter fractions of a drink (eg 1.5 drinks). A countdown timer starts once the relevant information has been entered.
- However both require women to know what a standard drink is and track how much they've been drinking. The app has a link to the NHMRC standard drinks guide.

Slide 35: We don't know...

Some common questions you may hear from participants include:

• 'what support is available for children and their families once a FASD diagnosis has been made?'

This varies across Australia. There are support agencies for families and carers eg NOFASD and rffada (contact details are listed in the 'Helpful websites' section of this Facilitator Manual and the Participant Workbook).

'if FASD is a disability, are children eligible for government support?'
 At the time of finalising this training package (August 2017) FASD was not a recognised disability under the National Disability Insurance Agency in Australia.
 However, people with FASD can receive support determined by the level of impairment. Key experts in the field are advocating and lobbying for it to be recognised by the National Disability Insurance Agency in the future.

33

 \bigcirc

0 0 0 0 0

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

Slide 36: For more information on FASD projects by the Marninwarntikura Fitzroy Women's Resource Centre in the Fitzroy Valley <u>http://www.mwrc.com.au/</u>

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \odot \odot

Module 2: Brief Interventions and Motivational Interviewing

My learning goals for this workshop

Goal		





 \bigcirc

34

0 0

 \bigcirc

Module 2: Learning objectives

Module 2 aims to increase:

- Confidence in using brief interventions and motivational interviewing techniques with antenatal clients for alcohol consumption, tobacco smoking, and substance misuse during pregnancy.
- ii. Knowledge of the AUDIT-C screening tool.

FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES	3
	000000





 \bigcirc

000000000000000000000000000



 \bigcirc



Individual level influencers

- · Genetic predisposition for addictive behaviours
- · Environment of alcohol use or abuse
- · Knowledge of the effects of alcohol on the fetus, and FASD

FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PR

 Stressors and coping mechanisms

Age and previous pregnancies



0

Other examples?

 \bigcirc

Organisational level influencers • Role of beverage/alcohol industry in awareness Availability of health facilities and practitioners For the Love of Be Accessibility to bars and other locations that sell alcohol Other examples? Alcohol companies in Australia spend an estimated \$125 million a year on alcohol advertising on direct television, radio, outdoor, and print media alone³ FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PR

36

 \bigcirc


Public policy influencers

- Funding for programs/services to raise awareness of the impact of drinking during pregnancy
- Funding for support services eg alcohol rehabilitation, mental health programs
- · Regulations related to selling/access of alcohol products and the definition of alcoholic beverage eg taxes, availability

FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RES

· Other examples?

Current practices

Group discussion

 \bigcirc

- · How do you engage your clients in a conversation about their lifestyle, health concerns and behaviour change?
- · When do you usually do this?
- · Do you use any resources to guide these conversations with your clients?

37

 \bigcirc

Why brief interventions?

Good evidence

- As good as Cognitive Behavioural Therapy in decreasing alcohol and drug use
 <u>Many health issues</u>
- Alcohol consumption during pregnancy
- Smoking cessation
- Unsafe sex
- Best practice
- · Honours a client's right to determine what happens to them
- · Recommended in current national prevention and treatment guidelines:
 - Supporting smoking cessation: A guide for health professionals (RACGP, 2014)
 Guidelines for preventive activities in General Practice 9th ed (RACGP, 2016)
 - CARPA Standard Treatment Manual 6th ed (CARPA, 2014)
 FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

Brief interventions for a healthy pregnancy

Who should be offered brief interventions?

- · Women of child-bearing age as part of pre-conception care⁴
- Women consuming risky amounts of alcohol (2+ standard drinks/day or 4+ standard drinks on a single occasion) or smoking or using drugs
- Antenatal clients, at every visit

How?

- · Listen to the client's story in their own words
- · Avoid judging or blaming
- · Provide information on the risks and consequences of drinking behaviour
- · Use Motivational Interviewing techniques

Motivational Interviewing

- · The client is the expert on themselves
- Role of the health professional^{5,6}
 - · Express empathy
 - Develop discrepancy between current behaviour and goals/values
- Roll with resistance to avoid argument, confrontation
- Encourage confidence in ability to change

Facilitator	VS.	Expert	
Collaboration	VS.	Confrontation	
Autonomy	VS.	Authority	
) HEALTH PROMO		

Tips	for active listening (OARS) ⁷
<u>O</u> pen	ended questions "Tell me about"
Affirm	what they are saying
	an see that staying off the smokes last week was really hard. Good on a for staying strong"
Reflec	t back what they have said to you
	b, it sounds like you don't think your drinking is an issue, but your sister worried about you"
<u>S</u> umm	arise to ensure you are both on the same track
"Le	t me see if I understand so far"

How do you feel about brief interventions and motivational interviewing?

Group discussion – Readiness Rulers⁸

How <u>important</u> do you think it is to use brief interventions & motivational interviewing with antenatal clients?

How <u>confident</u> do you feel to use brief interventions & motivational interviewing with antenatal clients?

Ask – All antenatal clients about alcohol, smoking, other drugs	Embed into routine care for all clients
Assess - Level of risky behaviour, readiness for change	Screening tools to assess how many standard drinks, readiness for behaviour change
Advise - Provide information on risk	Current national guidelines
factors	Dependent on stage of readiness for change
Assist - Work with client to develop	Motivational interviewing, OARS
goals and targets	Dependent on stage of readiness for change
Arrange - Referral to other services,	Link with appropriate services in your area
organise follow-up	Record in client file



Ask

Group discussion

- When is it important to ask young women about:
 - Alcohol
 - Smoking
 - Drug use
 - Contraception
- · What are the challenges in asking your antenatal clients about these behaviours?
- How can you feel more comfortable discussing these topics with your antenatal clients?

FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

Barriers to asking about alcohol use in pregnancy

Health professionals may feel:

- · Unsure how to ask, or are concerned about the response
- · They lack time to raise the issue

 \bigcirc

- They lack knowledge about FASD
- · It is not their role and are unprepared to give advice
- · They lack skills in brief intervention and motivational interviewing
- That it is not relevant to the woman or is of low priority
- Unsure about conflicting recommendations
- Unsure of effective screening tools or referral services

EVENTION AND HEALTH PRO

40

 \bigcirc

Overcoming barriers

Group discussion

- Do it later in the consult when relationship built
- Normalise it "I ask everyone about how much they drink"
 "These questions are part of standard practice at this visit"

Other suggestions?

Assess – Alcohol consumption

Why do we use alcohol consumption screening tools?

- Standardised way of identifying risk
- · Reliable way to assess risk for a range of people
- Can be useful for tracking progress over time
- Can be used to assess risk and then start a brief intervention, if needed
- · Can be referred to later on to assist with FASD diagnosis

FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOT

	ported alcohol use (if a		ing alcohol during this	pragespour?	
Jnknown	Never	Monthly	2-4 times	2-3 times	4 or more times
	[skip Q2+Q3]	or less	a month	a week	a week
					□4
2. How many	standard drinks did th	e birth mother hav	e on a typical day whe	n she was drinking	during this pregnancy?
Unknown	1 or 2	3 or 4	5 or 6	7 to 9	10 or more
				□3	□4
3. How often	did the birth mother h	ave 5 or more stan	dard drinks on one oc	asion during this p	regnancy?
Unknown	Never	Less than	Monthly	Weekly	Daily or
		monthly			almost daily
				□3	□4
AUDIT-C score	during this pregnancy: (Q1+Q2+Q3)=	Scores= 0=no risk	1-4= confirmed use	S+= confirmed high-risk
					2





_		
Whether a p	person is ready to c	nange determines the support we offer
Stages of C	hange ¹⁰	
• Pr	e-contemplation	Not ready
• Co	ntemplation	Unsure
• Pr	eparation	Getting ready
• Ac	tion	Taking steps
• Ma	aintenance	Sticking with the change
• Re	lapse	Learning from slip-ups





·						
·						

Maternal		A	ustralia	nstanda	ard drinl	(S	
weight (kg)							
50	1:51	3:43	5:35	7:27	9:18	11:11	13:03
59	1:42	3:26	5:09	6:52	8:36	10:19	12:02
66	1:37	3:15	4:53	6:31	8:10	9:48	11:26
70	1:33	3:07	4:41	6:15	7:50	9:24	10:57
ime is calci eedsafe ap	ulated from	n the beg	jinning of	drinking			

Pre-contemplation	Provide advice about harm minimisation Offer support when ready to change in the future
Contemplation	Identify positive reasons to change and risks of not changing Increase confidence to change
Preparation	Set goals together Take steps towards change
Action	Encourage and celebrate the change
Maintenance	Support the change Help identify strategies to prevent relapse
Relapse	Help get back to 'getting ready' or 'changing' without becoming demoralised





Assist – Open-ended questions

Pre-contemplation, Contemplation or Preparation

Help clients think about change and feel more motivated:

- How do you feel about your alcohol use?
- · What are some of the good things about your alcohol use?
- What worries you about your alcohol use?
- What might be some benefits of you stopping or reducing the amount of alcohol that you drink?

 Also Hereardia Also Hereardia Networks
 31

 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0

Assist – Create a change plan

Preparation, Action and Maintenance

Strengthen commitment to change by¹³:

- Ensuring the client drives the change plan
- · Assisting the client to set their own goals

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

- Having the client identify support people in their lives
- Discussing what support is available from your health service, or other local organisations

44

Arrange

Arrange a follow-up visit to check-in with the client's progress

- Ideally follow-up within 1-2 weeks
- Arrange a referral, if needed
 - another staff member or program within your clinic
 - a specialist or clinic
 - a local program

Arrange

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

Group discussion

- What support services does your health service offer?
- Are these meeting community need or are new services needed?
- What can other staff at your service provide?
- · What visiting services do you have?
- · What external services are there to support clients?
- Are these culturally appropriate, accessible, affordable?



45



ACTION Client comes in for second antenatal check, has been using NRT successfully	ADVISE – baby's health is benefitting. ASSIST – celebrate their achievements. Revisit their change plan, discuss their challenges and how they can overcome these. ARRANGE – follow-up at next visit.
MAINTENANCE Client comes in for glucose tolerance test, is off the smokes and NRT	ADVISE - ASSIST - Celebrate! Reinforce that this is the best thing they can do for their health. Talk about what's been difficult and how they've dealt with it. ARRANGE - follow-up at next visit.
RELAPSE Client comes in for baby check, you notice they're smoking again	ADVISE – this is a normal part of the process. ASSIST – them to see how they quit before and that they can do it again. Offer support for when they are ready to quit again. ARRANGE - follow-up at next visit or QuitLine



Module 2 aimed to increase:

i. Confidence in using brief interventions and motivational interviewing techniques with antenatal clients for alcohol consumption, tobacco smoking and substance misuse during pregnancy.

ii. Knowledge of the AUDIT-C screening tool.

46



Additional notes



Module 2 References:

- National Health and Medical Research Council (2009). Australian Guidelines to Reduce Health Risks from Drinking Alcohol. Commonwealth of Australia. Canberra. Accessed January 2017 from <u>https://www.nhmrc.gov.au/ files_nhmrc/publications/attachments/ds10-alcohol.pdf</u>
- 2. Hayes, L. (2012). Aboriginal woman, alcohol and the road to fetal alcohol spectrum disorder. Medical Journal of Australia, 197(1): p. 21-23.
- 3. Victorian Department of Human Services. (2009). Alcohol beverage advertising in mainstream Australian media 2005 to 2007: expenditure and exposure.
- 4. The Royal Australian College of General Practitioners. Guidelines for preventive activities in general practice. 9th ed. East Melbourne, Vic: RACGP, 2016.
- 5. Miller, W and Rollnick, S. Motivational Interviewing: Helping People Change. 3rd ed. New York: The Guilford Press, 2013.
- 6. Australian Government Department of Health. (2004). Working with young people on AOD issues: learner's workbook. Accessed January 2017 from [cited 2017 31st January]; Available from <u>http://www.health.gov.au/internet/publications/publishing.nsf/Content/drugtreatpubs-front9-wk-toc~drugtreat-pubs-front9-wk-secb~drugtreat-pubs-front9-wk-secb-<u>4~drugtreat-pubs-front9-wk-secb-4-1</u></u>
- Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. (2007). Motivational Interviewing: The basics, OARS. Accessed January 2017 from <u>http://homelesshub.ca/resource/motivational-interviewing-open-questions-affirmation-reflective-listening-and-summary</u>
- 8. Humeniuk, R., Henry-Edwards, S., Ali, R., Poznyak, V., Monteiro, M. (2010). The ASSIST-linked brief intervention for hazardous and harmful substance use: manual for use in primary care. World Health Organisation, Geneva Switzerland.
- Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education. (2014). Women want to know 5A's. Accessed January 2017 from <u>http://www.alcohol.gov.au/internet/alcohol/publishing.nsf/Content/5a</u>

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \odot

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 Bower, C., Elliott, EJ., on behalf of the Steering Group (2016). Report to the Australian Government Department of Health: "Australian Guide to the diagnosis of Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD)".

 \odot \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

48

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

- Prochaska J, DiClemente C. Towards a comprehensive model of change. In: Miller WR, Heather N, editors. Treating addictive behaviours: processes of change. New York: Pergamon, 1986.
- 12. The Homeless Hub (2016). Theories to Support the Work: Stages of Change. Accessed January 2017 from <u>http://homelesshub.ca/toolkit/subchapter/stages-change</u>
- 13.US Department of Health and Human Services. Rethink Drinking. Planning for Change. Accessed January 2017 from <u>https://www.rethinkingdrinking.niaaa.nih.gov/Thinking-about-a-change/Its-up-to-you/Planning-For-Change.aspx</u>

0 0 0

 \odot \odot

 \bigcirc

49

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

Module 2 Further Reading and Additional Information:

Slide 7-10: Introducing the Socio-Ecological Model to explain influences on behaviour acting at different levels.



The Socio-Ecological Model, pictured above and described in the table below, is also discussed in Module 4, slide 7. This model identifies key factors that may either assist or hinder behaviour change.

SEM Level	Description
Individual	Characteristics of an individual that influence behaviour change, including knowledge, attitudes, behaviour, self-efficacy, developmental history, gender, age, religious identity, racial/ethnic/caste identity, sexual orientation, socio-economic status, financial resources, values, goals, expectations, literacy, stigma, and others.
Interpersonal	Formal (and informal) social networks and social support systems that can influence individual behaviours, including family, friends, peers, co-workers, religious networks, customs or traditions.
Community	Relationships among organizations, institutions, and informational networks within defined boundaries, including the built environment (eg parks), village associations, community leaders, businesses, and transportation.
Organizational	Organizations or social institutions with rules and regulations for operations that affect how, or how well, for example services are provided to an individual or group.
Policy/Enabling Environment	Local, state, national and global laws and policies, including policies regarding the allocation of resources for maternal, newborn, and child health and access to healthcare services, restrictive policies (eg high fees or taxes for health services), or lack of policies that require warning labels on alcoholic beverages.

Table 1: Descriptions of the socio-ecological model levels

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 \odot \odot

Slide 12: Further information on brief interventions. The Central Australian Rural Practitioners Association. CARPA Standard Treatment Manual: 4. Chronic Disease – Brief Interventions. 2014. Accessed January 2017 from <u>http://www.remotephcmanuals.com.au/publication/stm/Brief_interventions.html</u>

Slide16: Readiness Rulers⁸

How important is it to change your behaviour if you decided to?

On a scale of 0 to 10, where 0 is not at all important and 10 is extremely important, how would you rate yourself?

Not	at all				Neutral				Extre	mely
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10

How confident do you feel to change your behaviour if you decided to?

On a scale of 0 to 10, where 0 is not at all confident and 10 is extremely confident, how would you rate yourself?

Not	at all				Neutral				Extre	mely
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10

51

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

• Why are you at a _____ and not a 0?

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

• What would it take for you to move from a _____ to a (higher number)?

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \odot

 (\bigcirc)

Slide18: Transcript for the 5A's video

A pregnant woman enters a health service where she is greeted at the door by her Doctor and shown through to the Doctor's room.

<u>Doctor</u>: Ok look so we've covered smoking and nutrition and now I'd like to talk about something that I discuss with all of my pregnant patients and that's alcohol.

ASK

Doctor: How much would you say you drink?

Patient: Well I drank a bit before I found out I was pregnant umm but just wine with dinner.

Doctor: Ok, has that changed since you found out that you're pregnant?

Patient: Ah not really umm but I've never been a big drinker.

ASSESS

<u>Doctor</u>: Ok. Just so I've got a better idea of what your drinking patterns are like, how often would you say you drink?

Patient: Ah 3 or 4 nights a week, wine with dinner.

<u>Doctor</u>: And how much would you have? What I'm going to do is I'm going to show you here a chart of all of what a standard drink is.

Patient: Well I usually drink wine so I guess about a bottle between us.

Doctor: Between you and your husband?

Patient: (nods)

Doctor: Ok. Would you share it equally? Would one of you drink more?

<u>Patient</u>: (Shaking head) yeah no I drink less than my husband. I don't really want to drink much at the moment but I just find it helps me relax.

Doctor: Ok. What have you heard about alcohol in pregnancy?

<u>Patient</u>: Everything in moderation (laughs). Umm I know that, I've heard that you're not supposed to go and get wasted and I'm definitely not doing that. Umm it's just a glass or two with dinner and I drank during my pregnancy with Tim so I'm not overly worried about it.

ADVISE

<u>Doctor</u>: Look moderation is good for most things, but when you're pregnant it's safest not to have any alcohol at all.

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

52

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

Patient: No alcohol at all !?

<u>Doctor</u>: (continues looking down, taking notes).

 \bigcirc

Patient: But I drank when I was pregnant with Tim and he's fine.

 \odot

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

(O)

 \bigcirc

<u>Doctor</u>: Look I'm sure he is, but when you were pregnant with Tim it was 4 years ago. The guidelines have now since changed, there's actually no safe level of alcohol when you're pregnant. And also every pregnancy is different so what might've been ok in your first pregnancy, may not be so ok now (looks down at her clipboard).

<u>Patient</u>: (Very distressed) are you saying that I've hurt my baby? Because I've been drinking as I normally would. If its' so bad then why hasn't anyone told me sooner?

<u>Doctor</u>: I'm not saying that you've hurt your baby, and no one is suggesting that and I'm really sorry that no one has been clear with you beforehand. But the important thing is now that you're aware, that you stop drinking any alcohol, that you start looking after your health, that you maintain your nutrition, reduce your stress and relax. All of the decisions that you make from now on are going to be really important for your health and the health of your baby.

<u>Patient</u>: Well that's going to be really hard because a glass wine, it helps me relax.

ASSIST

<u>Doctor</u>: You've mentioned relaxing a few times. Umm is there something that's causing you to feel not relaxed?

<u>Patient</u>: Well it would be great if my husband helped out more. Umm came home earlier, helped put Tim to bed. Umm maybe if he gave up drinking too.

Doctor: Do you think that's something he'd be willing to do?

<u>Patient</u>: I don't know umm but we can chat about it. So what do I say to those people who say that a glass of wine on occasion is no big deal?

Doctor: Is it going to be hard for you to be around those people?

<u>Patient</u>: Yes! Because my friends, they just say doctors, they tell you that to make you feel guilty. I don't know what to say to that.

<u>Doctor</u>: Look I can understand. In those situations it's probably best just to say that there are new guidelines, you want to do what is healthiest for your baby, and umm you want to give your baby and yourself the best start. How does that sound?

Patient: (Nodding) Yeah that sounds ok, umm I can try it.

<u>Doctor</u>: Ok good. Now look I'm going to give you some information that will explain the reasoning behind these new guidelines and also some tips that might make you feel more confident about stopping drinking.

ARRANGE

<u>Doctor</u>: Don't forget that anytime you can come back in and discuss it and perhaps bring your husband as well and we can go through all of this together.

53

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

Patient: Yeah that might be really helpful (nods). I'll think about that.

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

0

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

<u>Voice over</u>: It's important to open with a question like "what do you know about" or "how do you feel about drinking alcohol in pregnancy?" These open questions allow the woman the opportunity to talk about her knowledge and feelings. It also allows the health professional to know where to guide the conversation in terms of advice. Rather than tell the woman the health consequences of alcohol consumption, this approach known as motivational interviewing aims to find out the patients level of knowledge and provide the relevant information. There is no assumption that if she just had the correct information she would change. So it's good to make some general statements such as "a lot of women receive mixed messages about alcohol and pregnancy". This helps the woman realise that they're not alone and that it's completely normal for a health professional to bring up alcohol.

- End of transcript -

Module 3: Monitoring and Evaluating

My learning goals for this workshop

Goal			



Review Module 1: What is FASD? Module 1 aimed to increase: i. Knowledge and understanding of the consequences of drinking alcohol, smoking tobacco and substance misuse during pregnancy. ii. Knowledge and understanding of the important role of health professionals in preventing harm from drinking alcohol, smoking tobacco and substance misuse during pregnancy. FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

 \bigcirc

55

 \bigcirc

Review Module 2: Brief interventions and motivational interviewing

Module 2 aimed to increase:

- i. Confidence in using brief interventions and motivational interviewing techniques with antenatal clients for alcohol consumption, tobacco smoking and substance misuse during pregnancy.
- ii. Knowledge of the AUDIT-C screening tool.

FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES	3
$\begin{array}{c} 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 $	000000
000000000000000000000000000000000000000	000000

Module 3: Learning objectives

Module 3 aims to increase:

 \bigcirc

- i. Awareness of the importance of monitoring and evaluating FASD prevention and health promotion strategies.
- ii. Knowledge of appropriate indicators to monitor and evaluate FASD prevention and health promotion strategies.
- iii. Understanding of the link between antenatal screening records and The Australian FASD Diagnostic Assessment Form.

- FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

Monitoring vs evaluating¹ Monitoring Conducted while program is running Conducted at the end of a program Collects information at specific time-points, usually at the end Continuous collection of information Usually completed by people within the Usually completed by people external to the organisation organisation Example: tracking attendance rates at community education sessions Example: auditing antenatal client records FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

56





For acc	ountability
• To c	ommunity
• To y	our managers, or Board
• To f	unders
<u>To imp</u>	rove
• Con	tinuous Quality Improvement
To und	erstand
• Our	own interest
• Res	earch



 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc





Online Services Report (annual)	nKPIs (six monthly)
Staff numbers: Aboriginal health workers, Aboriginal health practitioners, midwives, nurses	First antenatal visit in first 13 weeks
Clients and client contacts For each type of staff	Health checks 0-4 year olds
Total number of antenatal visits	Smoking status recorded Alcohol consumption recorded
Group sessions:	Smoking status result
Antenatal classes, Mums and bubs, Parenting classes	Alcohol consumption result
	Smoking status of women who gave birth
	Birth weight result











 \bigcirc









 \bigcirc

60

 \bigcirc

Record keeping

Group discussion

· What systems do you currently use for record keeping in your health service?

- FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

- patient information systems - Quality Assurance or Quality Improvement systems
- How do you monitor the quality of the data that is entered?
- · Do you receive feedback reports?
- · How are these discussed for quality improvement?

How can we capture information to monitor and evaluate our program?

Many sources of information:

- · Surveys with clients, with staff, with community
- · National registries with local data
- Data extraction from medical records (screening tools)
- Accounting systems
- · Paper based reports

eedback comments					
	Poor	Satisfactory	Neutral	Good	Excellen
Overall experience		1		8	1:
Ease of making appointment	1	3	-	4	14
Transport	-		1	5	(
Friendliness and helpfulness of staff	-	1	1	4	18
Reception area	-	2	2	3	18
Waiting time	1	4	3	5	ę
Explanation of health issue		2	2	8	10
Explanation of treatment options	-	1	2	6	13
Follow up/support		1	1	5	18
I feel my personal information is kept private and confidential	-	-	1	1	20

61

 \bigcirc



Extracting data from medical records Group discussion Why do we record information in medical records? Record progress of a client Remind yourself what you did for the next appointment Communicate to other staff what you are doing For reporting For legal reasons So you can fill in performance indicators

Others?











Exam	bles
Inputs	
-	Funding for maternal and child health
-	Staff (Aboriginal Health Workers, child health nurses, GPs)
Activit	es:
-	Find out why attendance at antenatal and postnatal visits is currently low and make changes to encourage higher attendance.
Output	s:
· -	Number of visits per child
-	Group sessions (mums and bubs, cooking classes)
-	Number of 'health checks' performed
Outcor	nes:
-	Immunisation
-	Alcohol consumption and smoking in mothers
	Children born a healthy weight





Screening tools	Diagnostic tools
Does not give a definite answer	Are very accurate
Shows increased risk	Can identify a condition
Results are used to decide on path of action eg referral to a specialist	Some invasive diagnostic tests can carry increased risk which is why screening is conducted first
Can be used to introduce a brief intervention for risk factors	May require a multi-disciplinary team



- · The clinician/s completing the Australian FASD Diagnostic Assessment Form will refer to antenatal notes about alcohol consumption.
- · Therefore it is important that discussions about alcohol are recorded in the client record.

- FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCE

Linking screening and diagnosis

The Australian FASD Diagnostic Assessment Form⁶ includes:

- · History presenting concerns, obstetric, developmental, medical, mental health, behavioural, social
- Birth defects dysmorphic facial features, other major and minor birth defects
- · Adverse prenatal and postnatal exposures including alcohol; Antenatal notes and AUDIT-C contribute to this
- Known medical conditions including genetic syndromes and other disorders Growth

A vital question is 'could this be alcohol related or due to other factors' FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES



 \bigcirc

65

UDIT-C Re	ported alcohol use (if	wailable)			
How often	did the birth mother h	ave a drink containi	ng alcohol during this	pregnancy?	
known	Never	Monthly	2-4 times	2-3 times	4 or more times
	[skip Q2+Q3]	or less	a month	a week	a week
	□o	\Box_1			□4
How many	standard drinks did th	e birth mother have	on a typical day whe	n she was drinking (during this pregnancy?
nknown	1 or 2	3 or 4	5 or 6	7 to 9	10 or more
	Do		□2	□3	□4
How often	did the birth mother h	ave 5 or more stand	lard drinks on one oc	casion during this pr	regnancy?
nknown	Never	Less than	Monthly	Weekly	Daily or
		monthly			almost daily
	Do		□2		
	during this pregnancy: (01-02-020-	Scorers Osno risk	1.4s confirmed use	5+= confirmed high-risk

Australian FASD Diagnostic Assessment Form⁶

Other evidence of exposure

Is there evidence that the birth mother has ever had a problem associated with alcohol misuse or dependency?

No
'Yes (dentify below, including source of information)
Alcohol dependency (specify)
Alcohol-related illness or hospitalisation (specify)
Alcohol-related injury (specify)
Alcohol-related offence (specify)

Other (specify)

Information from records: e.g. medical records, court reports, child protection records.

is there evidence that the birth mother's partner has ever had a problem associated with alcohol misuse or dependency? \square No \square Yes (identify below, including source of information)

Australian FASD Diagnostic Assessment Form ⁶
Information from the previous 3 sections is summarised below:
Source of reported information on alcohol use: Dirth mother Other (usedit) In your judgement what is the reliability of the information on alcohol exposure: Unknown Low High In your judgement was there high-risk consumption of alcohol during pregnancy? Unknown Yes No Prenatal alcohol exposure: Unknown None Confirmed use Confirmed-high risk



Module 3: Review

Module 3 aimed to increase:

- Awareness of the importance of monitoring and evaluating FASD prevention and health promotion strategies.
- ii. Knowledge of appropriate indicators to monitor and evaluate FASD prevention and health promotion strategies.
- iii. Understanding of the link between antenatal screening records and The Australian FASD Diagnostic Assessment Form.

Finishing up Any questions?

	 	 <u> </u>
<u> </u>	 	
	 	 <u> </u>
<u></u>	 	
	 	 - -

Module 3 References:

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

- World Health Organisation (2004). Monitoring and Evaluation Toolkit. WHO: Geneva, Switzerland. Accessed on February 2017 from http://www.who.int/hiv/pub/me/me_toolkit2004/en/
- Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander primary health care: results from December 2014. National key performance indicators for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander primary health care series no.3. Cat. no. IHW 161. Canberra: AIHW. Accessed January 2017 from http://www.aihw.gov.au/WorkArea/DownloadAsset.aspx?id=60129553396
- Australian Institute of Health and Welfare 2016. Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health organisations: Online Services Report—key results 2014–15. Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health services report No. 7. IHW 168. Canberra: AIHW. Accessed January 2017 from http://www.aihw.gov.au/publication-detail/?id=60129554783
- W.K. Kellogg Foundation (2004). Logic Model Development Guide. Michigan, USA. Accessed January 2017 from <u>https://www.wkkf.org/resource-</u> <u>directory/resource/2006/02/wk-kellogg-foundation-logic-model-development-guide</u>
- 5. Centre for Theory of Change. TOC Background. Accessed January 2017 from http://www.theoryofchange.org/what-is-theory-of-change/toc-background/
- 6. Bower C, Elliott EJ 2016, on behalf of the Steering Group. Report to the Australian Government Department of Health: "Australian Guide to the diagnosis of Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD)".

 \odot \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \odot

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \odot \odot

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

69 0

Module 3 Further Reading and Additional Information:

Slide 24: Logic Models

- A logic model gives us a roadmap, or a logical pathway, to explain how our planned activities will bring about change in our community. They can be displayed a number of different ways, this is an example of a simple logic model⁴.
- Logic models are most effective when they are used at the planning stage of a program, as they help to define an issue, identify what is causing or contributing to the issue and specify the rationale behind the program.

Parts of a logic model:

- Inputs the resources needed eg equipment, staffing, funding, in-kind support.
- Activities the actions, or events, or processes you will implement during the program eg develop and distribute educational materials, conduct education group, run a social media campaign, change your patient record information system.
- Outputs the direct result of conducting your 'activities' as you had planned eg how many people received educational materials, number of education groups and the number of people who attended from your target group.
- Outcomes changes that are expected to occur as a result of your 'activities' eg changes in attitudes, knowledge, behaviour in those people who attended your education group.
- Impacts changes that are expected to occur in the longer term, as a result of your 'activities', they are usually changes at the community or organisational level eg changes to policy or improved conditions or increased capacity.

How to develop a logic model:

- Start with the end in mind, be clear on long-term goals, or impacts, of the program.
- You may need involvement from team members, community or partners to develop a logic model.

Slide 27: Developing indicators

• In order to be meaningful, indictors generally contain the following: population, change target, threshold and timeline⁵.

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

70

0 0 0 0

O

 (\bigcirc)

• For each indicator ask:

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

- 1. Who do you want to change?
- 2. How many do we expect will succeed in changing?
- 3. What sort of change are we looking for, how much change is enough?
- 4. When does this outcome expected to happen?

Module 4: Sharing Health Information

My learning goals for this workshop

Goal			



Review Module 1: What is FASD?

Module 1 aimed to increase:

 \bigcirc

- Knowledge and understanding of the consequences of drinking alcohol, i. smoking tobacco and substance misuse during pregnancy.
- ii. Knowledge and understanding of the important role of health professionals in preventing harm from drinking alcohol, smoking tobacco and substance misuse during pregnancy.

71

 \bigcirc

Review Module 2: Brief interventions and motivational interviewing

Module 2 aimed to increase:

- Confidence in using brief interventions and motivational interviewing techniques with antenatal clients for alcohol consumption, tobacco smoking and substance misuse during pregnancy.
- ii. Knowledge of the AUDIT-C screening tool.

Review Module 3: Monitoring and evaluating

Module 3 aimed to increase:

- Awareness of the importance of monitoring and evaluating FASD prevention and health promotion strategies.
- ii. Knowledge of appropriate indicators to monitor and evaluate FASD prevention and health promotion strategies.
- Understanding of the link between antenatal screening records and The Australian FASD Diagnostic Assessment Form.

Module 4: Learning objectives

Module 4 aims to increase:

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

- Knowledge of health promotion and health education strategies for FASD prevention.
- ii. Awareness of the FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources Package.
- iii. Skills to plan, implement and evaluate FASD health education and health promotion strategies for a range of target groups, within health services.

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

72

 \bigcirc

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$










Screening, individual risk assessment, immunisation	Health information & social marketing	Health education and skills development	Community action	Settings and supportive environments
		AIM		
Early detection &management of diseases to improve physical risk factors	Improve knowledge, attitudes, confidence & individual capacity to change psychosocial & behavioural risk factors	Influence behavior change through the provision of health information & development of personal skills	To increase community control over the determinants of health, through collective efforts, community participation	To develop healthier physica social & cultura environments where people liv learn work and play
	To improve health literacy of individuals, communities & organisations	To advocate for broader social and environment change agendas	Empowerment, & increasing health literacy	Organisational development economic & regulatory activit

Health promotion	Health education
Group activities that involve education about health needs and optimal health	An essential element of health promotion
Focus on environmental, educational, cultural, socio-political determinants of health	May be more of a focus on individual health
reventive perspective aims for legislative form, empowering communities, paying attention to cultural or economic	Activities that raise awareness giving the person health knowledge required to decide on a particular health action
disparities, political advocacy	Could be considered disease-centered (medical)









0

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc



 \bigcirc











 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resource Package

What is in the Package?

Publicly available, current and culturally appropriate resources to support health professionals develop and deliver programs to raise awareness of, and prevent, FASD in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities.

- FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

Resources for: Pregnant women

- Women of childbearing age (15-45 years of age)
 Grandmothers and Aunties
- Men, fathers and partners · Health professionals

Search for resources using the Resource Directory.



Resource Purpose			Population Group	2	
	Pregnant women	Women of childbearing age	Grandmothers and Aunties	Men	Health professional
Educating and raising awareness of:	↓ ↓				
FASD and alcohol consumption during pregnancy	Click here	Click here	Click here	Click here	Click here
Tobacco use during pregnancy	Click here	Click here	Click here	Click here	Click here
Drug use during pregnancy	Click here	Click here	Click here	Click here	Click here
Family planning and contraception options	Click here	Click here	x	Click here	Click here
Planning evidence-based interventions:					
One-on-one sessions	x	x	x	x	Click here
Health promotion programs	x	х	x	х	Click here
Frameworks for evaluating interventions	x	x	x	x	Click here
Encouraging behavioural change:					
Brief interventions or motivational interviewing	x	х	x	х	Click here
How to support women	x	x	x	Click here	Click here
Screening tools and guides	x	x	x	x	Click here
Addressing barriers to FASD prevention	Click here	Click here	Click here	Click here	Click here
Additional resources of interest	Click here	Click here	Click here	Click here	Click here







Planning health promotion programs

Key elements:

- Who is your target audience?
- What needs to change? How much? By when?
- How will you do it? What is your message?
- · Where will you do it?
- · How will you know whether you have achieved change?

Identifying your target group

- Who are they?
- How old are they?

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

- · Where do they live and/or how are they connected?
- What might influence their behaviour? (consider enablers and blockers)

223

79

Goals: What are you trying to achieve?

Goals: to increase awareness of the risks of drinking during pregnancy as well as improve Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples' awareness of and access to health care services and programs

Example goals:

- · To raise awareness of the risks of smoking during pregnancy and promote quitting smoking for the baby
- · To increase awareness of the benefits of antenatal health checks and promote visiting the clinic for regular check-ups

- FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

Strategies: How will you do it?

How will you do it?

- · What actions will contribute to achieving your goal?
- · What outcomes (results) do you expect?
- · What can you measure to see if goals have been achieved, within the timeframe?
- · What do you want your audience to know? eg Aboriginal health workers know how to keep you and your

audience? eg drinking and smoking

<u>What is your message?</u>

harms your baby

baby healthy

· What do you want to say to your

· What do you want your audience to do? eg visit the clinic and talk to Aboriginal Health Worker about you and your baby's health

Evaluation: How will you know you've made a difference?

- FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PROMOTION RESOURCES

- · To assess whether you've achieved your goal and made a difference.
- · First, gather data and record what has happened.
- · Other examples:

 \bigcirc

- Record the number of people who have health checks
- Record the number of people who participate in your program
- Prepare a short survey to get people's feedback on the activity; ask about their awareness of FASD and/or the risks of drinking alcohol or smoking during pregnancy
- Organise a community meeting after the event to discuss how it went and next steps

It is important to design your evaluation during the planning phase NOT as an afterthought FASD PREVENTION AND HEALTH PI

80

Finalise your plan

Have you identified:

- 1. Your target audience?
- 2. What needs to change? How much and by when?
- 3. How you will you do it?
- 4. What your key messages are?
- 5. How you will know you've achieved change?

Module 4: Review

Module 4 aimed to increase:

- Knowledge of health promotion and health education strategies for FASD prevention.
- ii. Awareness of the FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources Package.
- Skills to plan, implement and evaluate FASD health education and health promotion strategies for a range of target groups, within health services.

Finishing up Any questions?

Additional notes		

_

_

Module 4 References:

- 1. UNICEF (n.d.). Module 1: Understanding the Social Ecological Model (SEM) and Communication for Development (C4D).
- Hayes, L., D'Antoine, H. and Carter, M. (2014). Addressing fetal alcohol spectrum disorder in Aboriginal communities. In Working together: Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander mental health and wellbeing principles and practice. Dudgeon, P., Milroy, H. and Walker, R. eds. Commonwealth of Australia: Canberra, Australia. p. 373-382.
- 3. Victorian Department of Human Services (2003). Integrated Health Promotion Toolkit. Melbourne: Victoria.
- 4. World Health Organisation (1998). Health Promotion Glossary. Geneva, Switzerland.
- 5. Green, L. & Kreuter, M. (2005). Health Program Planning: An Educational and Ecological Approach. New York: McGraw-Hill.
- 6. Egger, G., Spark, R. & Donovan R. (2005). Health promotion, strategies and methods. Sydney: McGraw-Hill
- 7. Weeramanthri, T. (1996). Knowledge, language and mortality: communicating health information in Aboriginal communities in the Northern Territory. Australian Journal of Primary Health, 2(2): p. 3-11.
- 8. Northern Territory Department of Health and Aged Care (1989). Aboriginal health promotion training manual. Darwin, Northern Territory.
- 9. Wunan Foundation (2013). Swimming the river. Accessed February 2017 from <u>https://youtu.be/0P9FRacTji0</u>
- 10. Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion (Public Health Ontario). Planning Health Promotion Programs: Introductory Workbook. 4th ed. 2015, Toronto, ON: Queen's Printer for Ontario.
- 11. Murray, C., et al. Planning and Evaluation Wizard: Step-by-step project planning and report writing for primary health care. Accessed February 2017 from http://www.flinders.edu.au/medicine/sites/pew/pew-home.cfm
- 12. World Health Organisation (1986). Ottawa Charter for Health Promotion. Ottawa: Canada.

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

0

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

O

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 (\bigcirc)

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

83

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

O

Module 4 Further Reading and Additional Information:

Slide 7 Descriptions of the socio-ecological model levels.

SEM Level	Description					
Individual	Characteristics of an individual that influence behaviour change, including knowledge, attitudes, behaviour, self-efficacy, developmental history, gender, age, religious identity, racial/ethnic/caste identity, sexual orientation, socio-economic status, financial resources, values, goals, expectations, literacy, stigma, and others.					
Interpersonal	Formal (and informal) social networks and social support systems that can influence individual behaviours, including family, friends, peers, co-workers, religious networks, customs or traditions.					
Community	Relationships among organizations, institutions, and informational networks within defined boundaries, including the built environment (eg parks), village associations, community leaders, businesses, and transportation.					
Organizational	Organizations or social institutions with rules and regulations for operations that affect how, or how well, for example services are provided to an individual or group.					
Policy/Enabling Environment	Local, state, national and global laws and policies, including policies regarding the allocation of resources for maternal, newborn, and child health and access to healthcare services, restrictive policies (eg high fees or taxes for health services), or lack of policies that require warning labels on alcoholic beverages.					

Slide 8 Hayes, L. (2012). Aboriginal woman, alcohol and the road to fetal alcohol spectrum disorder. Medical Journal of Australia. 197(1):21-23.

The diagram below² has been used to outline the interconnecting factors that create a drinking cycle that can lead to alcohol consumption being an acceptable part of life.



Slide 19: River of Health. Text from the PowerPoint slide.

One day an Aboriginal Health Worker went to the river to go fishing.

While she was there she saw a person in the river who was in trouble. The person in the river didn't know how to swim.

The health worker jumped into the water, pulled her out and gave her first aid.

Then another person came down the river needing help, so she jumped in and saved him as well.

The same thing happened again and again and when the health worker thought about it, she thought the story was a little bit the same as her job in the community.

The river was the same as an illness, which makes people sick, and she had to give them treatment to make them well, just like when she was pulling people out of the river to save them from drowning,

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

()

 (\bigcirc)

85

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

Just then a little boy who had been watching this, tapped her on the should and said to her maybe it would be easier to go further up the river and find out why people were falling in and, if possible, to stop this from happening.

When she listened to him, she thought again about her job as a health worker. She thought that if she could prevent many of her people from getting sick, then she wouldn't have to fix them up with treatment all the time.

In her heart she knew that many people would still fall into the river so she thought she should teach people to look after themselves and their families when they got sick.

When she went to work at the health centre she told the other health workers that she had been thinking about the three parts of community health work: PREVENTION, INTERVENTION AND TREATMENT.

They talked about how the 'River of Illness' can become the 'River of Health'.

Reference: Northern Territory Department of Health & Community Services. 1989. Aboriginal health promotion training manual.

Slide 20: Transcript for Historical Perspective: Swimming the River.

G'day, I'm Ian Trust, the Executive Chair of Wunan Foundation, a not-for-profit organisation based in Kununurra in the East Kimberly region in Western Australia.

I'd like to share with you a metaphor that I've developed to explain the key issues facing my people, the Aboriginal people of East Kimberly. It's titled – Swimming the River.

The way I see it is like this, for most of the past 70,000 years, if you were Aboriginal you had to cross a harsh and unrelenting desert. In this harsh environment we not only survived but prospered and this was long before we had mining royalties and government services.

The key to our survival of course was a close knit community where everyone cared about the wellbeing of each other, where everyone contributed to the survival of your community. If you were a child you learned from the day you were born how to survive in this harsh environment and the rules which maintained your community. Elder's enforced strict norms and values and a sense of responsibility towards each other, our children and our old people. These things were embedded in our culture. A couple of hundred years ago the first settlers arrived and our world was turned upside down. Our people no longer roamed free anymore and new skills were needed to succeed in this new world. Now instead of the desert, there were new barriers to our survival that we needed to navigate. Now we had to learn to swim a river and where you learn to swim this river is at places they call schools.

O

0 0 0 0

 (\bigcirc)

0000000

 \odot \bigcirc

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

0

 (\bigcirc)

86

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

0 0 0 0 0

 $\circ \circ \circ \circ \circ$

These schools are set up to teach you to read and write and other important skills so you can swim the river. And the reason we must learn to swim the river is because all of the opportunities in this new world are on the other side of the river.

These opportunities include things such as jobs, houses, and business opportunities. All of which contribute to a better life. Many of our families have learned to adapt to this new world and understand the importance of their children learning how to swim from an early age. These families support their children, walking alongside them all the way to the bank of the river to make sure they know how to swim.

Even when these children go all the way through school, they don't swim straight across the river. But they make it to the other side because they've learnt one of the most important skills, how to adapt.

Unfortunately in the East Kimberly, we estimate that only 40% of our families walk alongside the kids all the way to the river bank. The other 60% of our families don't understand the importance of parents walking alongside their children. Because of a lack of parental support, the children from these families are in and out of the education system and by the time they leave school they haven't acquired the skills they need to swim the river. In most cases they don't make it to the other side to access the opportunities there.

This river is a dangerous place to be. There's a strong current and it's called welfare and those without the skills or the motivation to cross the river get swept along in the grip of the current. The reason why the river is dangerous is because downstream in the river lives a couple of big crocodiles. These crocodiles are drugs and alcohol.

History has shown us in the last 40 years in the East Kimberly, the longer you stay in the river the chances are you'll end up in the jaws of one of those crocodiles. Unfortunately for many of my people that is exactly what has happened.

Of course some of the people who have ended up in the mouths of crocodiles have gone on to be parents. In turn, many of them have not walked alongside their children to the river bank and so the cycle passes from one generation to the next. In some families it has been going on for at least four generations.

The by-product of this tragedy for many families who have been swept down the river has been poor health and living conditions, homelessness, domestic violence, mental illnesses, Fetal Alcohol Syndrome Disorder in children, and suicide. Many of them have lost their culture and language and have ended up in prison.

The difference between those families that have learnt to swim the river and those who haven't is dependent upon three things. These are: having access to

O

O

0

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

0

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \odot \odot

O

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

87

0

O

opportunities in education, employment and housing; having the ability to access these opportunities; and having a level of responsibility to bring the other two together. In the East Kimberly there are plenty of opportunities and our people have lots of ability but the thing that is missing is individual and family responsibility. That's what can help people move forward and help us rebuild our culture.

A key question to ponder is – why have we not broken the dysfunctional cycle that results in many of our people ending up in the mouths of crocodiles? The answer, I think, is low expectation from the government and from the community at large. The assumption is, these people do not have the ability to swim the river. As a result a lot of money goes into pulling people out of the mouths of crocodiles, rather than ensuring they learn to swim the river. The other part of the answer is that people know that the solutions will require some tough decisions in areas such as welfare reform, and holding parents responsible for their children's wellbeing. But the bottom line is that without these tough decisions, nothing will change.

- End of transcript -

Slide 25: Planning health promotion programs

The main steps are:¹⁰

- 1. Identify your target **group who** are the 'primary' and 'secondary' target groups.
- 2. Develop **goals** and **objectives** including **what** needs to change, **how** much change needs to occur and **when**.
- Develop strategies achieve the goals and objectives including specifics of what will be done and where.
- 4. Allocate **resources** to the strategies funding, staffing, equipment.

0000000

 \odot \bigcirc

5. Develop a program evaluation

Slide 26: Identify your target group

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \odot \odot

A health promotion program will often have both 'primary' and 'secondary' target groups¹⁰. The 'primary' group is the individual or sub-group that you are hoping to see a change in. For the purposes of learning activity you will be given a scenario where the primary target group will be either 1) pregnant women, 2) women of childbearing age, 3) men, 4) grandmothers and Aunties or 5) health professionals.

O

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

O

 \odot \odot

0 0 0 0 0

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

88

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

- The 'secondary' target group are individuals, networks, organisations, or communities that influence the primary audience's choices and behaviours. Secondary audiences can reduce the likelihood of the primary audience achieving the desired change and therefore should be accounted for in your health promotion program.
- Factors to consider for each population group when designing your program.

Pregnant women may be:

- Unaware that they are pregnant.
- Unable to share their pregnancy news with friends, family or their community.
- Wrongly informed of alcohol consumption during pregnancy.
- Experiencing a lack of social support.
- Unable to completely abstain during pregnancy.

Women of childbearing age may be:

- Unaware of contraception options and their effective use.
- Unable to be open about their sexual activity.
- Wrongly informed of alcohol consumption during pregnancy.
- Experiencing a lack of social support.

Men may be:

- Wrongly informed of alcohol consumption during pregnancy.
- Unaware of contraception options and their effective use.
- Unable to be open about their sexual activity.
- Unaware of their important role in supporting women.
- Creating unsupportive environments for women.

Grandmothers and Aunties may be:

- Wrongly informed of alcohol consumption during pregnancy.
- Passing on misconceptions and myths eg "I drank during pregnancy and my children were fine".
- Unaware of their important role in supporting women.
- Creating unsupportive environments for women.

Health Professionals may be:

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

- Wrongly informed of alcohol consumption during pregnancy.
- Passing on misconceptions and myths eg "Drinking red wine is very good to decrease stress during pregnancy".

• Unaware of their important role in supporting women.

Goal is a statement about the broad, long-term change your project is working toward. It refers to what you ultimately want to achieve, or your destination. **Objectives** are statements about more specific and immediate changes you want in order to progress towards your goal. The changes might be in skill levels, attitudes, knowledge, processes, awareness or behavior.

Goals should be¹¹:

- Clearly defined.
- Focus on one thing at a time.
- Are able to be measured in some way.
- Focus on the change you are wanting rather than the doing of activities.
- Are realistic and achievable.

Objectives should be **SMART**¹⁰:

- Specific (clear and precise).
- Measurable (able to be evaluated, data readily available and accessible).
- Appropriate (aligned with stakeholder expectations, theory and other evidence).
- Realistic (reasonable considering the resources and other circumstances).
- Time-limited.

When developing the goals and objectives of your program plan, think about¹¹:

- What you would like to see different/changed at the end of the program (changes should be significant, feasible, and within your capabilities)?
- How much change is realistically achievable?
- What is it going to do to achieve this change?
- Who will have been affected?
- How will they have been affected?

Goals and objectives checklist¹¹:

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

- Is your goal written in a way that identifies the broad, long-term change you want to achieve?
- Does your goal include what, who, how and where?
- Is it written as clearly and concisely as possible and can be clearly understood by someone unfamiliar with the program?

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

90

O

 \bigcirc

- Do your objectives focus on one thing at a time?
- Do your objectives refer to change?
- Do your objectives relate to your goal?

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

Strategies are statements about how you will meet the goals and objectives.

Activities are what you are going to do to achieve these strategies and communicate your key messages.¹¹

Strategies should be¹¹:

- Appropriate for the community.
- Directly relevant to the change you are seeking ie. your goals and objectives.
- Realistic in terms of number of strategies undertaken, time, resources and skills available.
- Supported by relevant stakeholder.
- Either proven to be successful in similar circumstances or are innovative.

Strategies checklist¹¹:

- Are your strategies related to your objectives?
- Do they focus on the activities of your program?
- Are they realistic, eg. number of strategies, time resources & skills?
- Are they considered appropriate by the workers and community members involved?

Key messages should be¹⁰:

- Clear and concise.
- Reflective of the programs overall goals.
- Motivational.
- Specific to a target audience.

To develop your key messages, consider¹⁰:

- What you want to say to your audience.
- What you want your audience to know.
- What do want your audience to do.

Activities should be¹⁰:

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

- Practical and appropriate for the community and target audience.
- Realistic in terms of the time, resources and skills available.

To identify the appropriate activities for each strategy, consider¹⁰:

- What actions will contribute to achieving your goal?
- What outcomes (results) do you expect?
- What can you measure to see if the goals have been achieved and within what timeframe?

Once you have outlined clear strategies with key messages and appropriate activities, you will need to allocate the resources required to achieve ach of the activities. To identity the relevant resources, consider:

- What resources are available within your health service, or partners. •
- Any resourcing gaps that may need addressing. •
- Exploring ways to address any resourcing gaps (ie collaborating with other • services in your area, seeking additional funding, in-house resource development using the FASD PosterMaker).

Slide 29: Evaluation: How will you know you've made a difference?

Module 3 explored data collection tools, processes and the importance of continuous quality improvement to evaluate a program's success and changes. These are important elements to include in your FASD Education Program Plan so you're able to measure the changes made by the program and evaluate its impact towards the overall goals and objectives.

- An evaluation plan is a short summary of what needs to be evaluated, what • information needs to be collected (indicators), and how you are intending to collect this information.
- Some indicators involve collecting information along the way and enable • you to make improvements throughout the program (monitoring). Other indicators involve collecting information at the end of the project (evaluation).
- Each of the program objectives should have at least one indicator and ٠ some may have multiple. A range of indicators that measure a combination of short- medium- and long-term change is suggested¹¹.

To develop indicators, consider¹¹:

- What is an appropriate timeframe for observing a result? •
- Is the measure available at that time? •
- Are the sources of data required to assess this result accessible? •
- Are the providers of the measure reliable, responsive, and timely? •
- Do you have the resources for any direct costs, eg fees or licenses? •
- Do you have the expertise to analyse or otherwise manage the data • provided?

Process Indicators measure how well the program activities and strategies are going and often fall into the following three main groups¹¹:

92

- 1. Implementation (what has been done)
 - a. Workshop outlines

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

b. Procedures developed

- c. Copies of media coverage
- 2. Reach & scope (who & how many people have been involved)
 - a. Number of participants
 - b. Proportion of age groups, men and women etc
 - c. Workers and organisations involved
- 3. Quality (how well things have been done)
 - a. Proportion of participants who report they are satisfied with materials or information produced, or the service provided
 - b. Certain standards of quality have been met

Impact/Outcome Indicators provide a sign of how well you have achieved the changes you were hoping for as a result of your project. They are about measuring change, the extent to which you have achieved your objectives and your longer term goal.

Indicators of impact relate to your objectives, and indicators of outcome relate to your goal¹¹.

Indicators should be assessed on their¹¹:

- Reliability the extent to which the indicator will give consistent, accurate measurement over time.
- Validity the extent to which the indicator measures what you set out to measure.

Slide 30: Finalise your plan

Consider the following questions to ensure your plan is complete¹⁰:

- Does the program include broad goals?
- Are your objectives SMART (specific, measurable, appropriate, realistic, and time-limited)?
- Have you identified a few major strategies to advance the goals and objectives?
- Have you chosen the best activities to advance the strategy? Are these activities appropriate to the audience?
- Have you identified relevant resources (people, funds, materials) for each activity and strategy?

93

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

• Does your plan have at least one indicator for each objective?

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

0

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

O

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

• Are the indicators reliable, valid and accessible?

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 (\bigcirc)

Networks

Use this page to collect contact details of health professionals you would like to keep in contact with after this training session.

Name	Email address	Contact phone

94

0 0

Helpful websites

1. Telethon Kids Institute – Alcohol, Pregnancy & FASD

https://alcoholpregnancy.telethonkids.org.au/

This website contains information on the Australian Guide to the Diagnosis of FASD and resources for community, parents and carers, schools and health professionals. The resources section also includes materials for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities. The website features the latest research from FASD Research Australia.

2. Health*Info*Net Australian Indigenous Alcohol and Other Drugs Knowledge Centre – FASD Portal

http://aodknowledgecentre.net.au/aodkc/alcohol/fasd

The Health*Info*Net is useful site for information on all areas of Indigenous health. The Australian Indigenous Alcohol and Other Drugs Knowledge Centre FASD portal aims to provide a central collection of policies and strategies, publications, resources and training materials supporting prevention and management of FASD in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities.

3. NOFASD Australia

0

 \bigcirc

 (\bigcirc)

 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

 \odot \odot

https://canceraustralia.gov.au/sites/default/files/publications/national-aboriginal-andtorres-strait-islander-cancer-framework/pdf/2015 atsi framework 1.pdf

NOFASD Australia aims to prevent alcohol exposed pregnancies in Australia and improve quality of life for those living with FASD by providing a strong and effective voice for individuals and families living with FASD. You will find several resources directed at preventing FASD and assisting families and individuals living with a FASD diagnosis.

4. Russell Family Fetal Alcohol Disorders Association http://www.rffada.org/

 \odot \odot

 \bigcirc \bigcirc

The Russell Family Fetal Alcohol Disorders Association (rffada) is a national not-for-profit health promotion charity dedicated to the prevention of FASD and ensuring parents, carers, and individuals affected by this disorder have access to diagnostic services, support and multidisciplinary management planning in Australia. On this site you will find a range of resources and information and contacts for local support groups.

 $\circ \circ \circ \circ \circ \circ$

95

 \bigcirc

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

O

Appendix 1: Standard drinks quiz

How many standard drinks are in each of these drinks? Match the drink to the correct answer.



How many standard drinks are in each of these drinks? Match the drink to the correct answer.



Answers - Standard drinks quiz

4L of white wine = 28

2L of port = 26

2L Darwin stubby = 7.7

700ml bottle of Bundaberg rum = 22

Cans of VB 30 x 375mL = 42

Bundaberg rum and coke can 375mL = 1.4

xxxx Gold 375mL = 1

Carlton Draught 375mL = 1.4

Lemon Ruski vodka 275mL = 0.9mL

Glass of red wine = 1.5

Appendix 2: Motivational Interviewing Summary Sheet

- **O** Ask open-ended questions
- A Affirm what the patient is saying
- R Reflect back what the client has said
- **S** Summarise to ensure you and the client are on the same page

Strengthen commitment to change

- What are the good things about staying the same?
- What are the bad things about staying the same?
- What is hard about changing?
- What are the benefits of changing?

Create a change plan

- Ensure the client is driving the plan
- Set goals with the client
- Ask them identify at least one person to support them

The Readiness Ruler

How important is it to change your behaviour if you decided to?

On a scale of 0 to 10, where 0 is not at all important and 10 is extremely important, how would you rate yourself?

Not at	all			Neutral Extremely						remely
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10

How <u>confident</u> do you feel to change your behaviour if you decided to?

On a scale of 0 to 10, where 0 is not at all confident and 10 is extremely confident, how would you rate yourself?

Not at	all	Neutral						Ext	remely	
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10

99

 \bigcirc

• Why are you at a _____ and not a 0?

 \bigcirc

What would it take for you to move from a _____ to a (higher number)?

Appendix 3: Women want to know – Information for health professionals on assessing alcohol consumption in pregnancy using AUDIT-C

See over page





Information for health professionals on assessing alcohol consumption in pregnancy using AUDIT-C

To provide women with the information they need to know about alcohol consumption during pregnancy it is important to know how much a woman is drinking and how this has changed since she found out that she is pregnant. This assessment of alcohol consumption, combined with education and support, can assist women to stop or reduce alcohol use in pregnancy and prevent adverse consequences from alcohol consumption such as Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders.¹

One way to assess a woman's alcohol consumption is by using the AUDIT-C (Alcohol Use Disorders Identification Test – Consumption). This tool has three short questions that estimate alcohol consumption in a standard, meaningful and non-judgemental manner. The total score from these questions provides an indication of the risks to the woman's health and can be used to guide conversations about alcohol and pregnancy. However it is safest for pregnant women not to consume any alcohol during pregnancy.

The AUDIT-C is a shortened version of the 10-item AUDIT tool, first developed by the World Health Organization in 1989. AUDIT-C has been validated for use with pregnant women² and is recommended for use by an Australian study that examined what questions should be asked about alcohol consumption and pregnancy.³

AUDIT-C questions

The three AUDIT-C questions that measure the amount and frequency of a person's drinking are included below. Add the scores for each question to get a total score and match the score to the risk of harm overleaf.

	Scoring system						
Questions	0	1	2	3	4	Score	
How often do you have a drink containing alcohol?	Never	Monthly or less	2 – 4 times per month	2 – 3 times per week	4+ times per week		
How many standard drinks of alcohol do you drink on a typical day when you are drinking?	1-2	3 – 4	5-6	7–9	10+		
How often do you have 5 or more drinks on one occasion?	Never	Less than monthly	Monthly	Weekly	Daily or almost daily		

Australian standard drinks

 \sim

Standard drinks are a measure of alcohol consumption and are used in the AUDIT-C questions. It is more reliable to count standard drinks than to count glasses or bottles or cans as alcohol is served in many different containers. The Australian standard drink measure contains 10grams of alcohol (equivalent to 12.5mls of pure alcohol).⁴ For example:

- 100ml glass of red wine at 13% alc vol = 1 standard drink.
- 100 ml glass of white wine at 11.5% alc vol = 0.9 of a standard drink.
- 375ml bottle or can of full strength beer at 4.8% alc vol = 1.4 standard drinks.
- 30ml nip of high strength spirit at 40% alc vol = 1 standard drink.
- 330ml bottle of full strength ready-to-drink 5% acl vol = 1.2 standard drinks.⁵

Many Australian women aren't aware of what a standard drink is so it is a good idea to have a chart that demonstrates this. Download these at: <u>http://www.nhmrc.gov.au/your-health/alcohol-guidelines</u>



Information and guidance for pregnant women following the AUDIT-C

The best advice for all women, regardless of whether or not they drink alcohol is that:

- No alcohol is the safest choice when pregnant or trying to get pregnant.
- No safe level of alcohol consumption during pregnancy has been determined.⁴

This advice is consistent with the National Health and Medical Research Council's Australian Guidelines to Reduce Health Risks from Drinking Alcohol.

Feedback should be provided to the woman based on the total AUDIT-C score (out of 12).

AUDIT-C Score	Advice to be given*
0 – 3 = low risk of harm	 Provide positive reinforcement if she has scored zero and encourage her to continue not to drin any alcohol during pregnancy. A score of zero indicates no risk of alcohol-related harm to the fetus. If she scores between zero and 3 advise that the risk to the fetus is likely to be low but it is safest not to drink any alcohol at all during pregnancy. Advise that the risk of harm to the developing fetus increases with increasing amounts and frequency of alcohol consumption and that any score above zero indicates potential risk to the fetu Encourage her to stop drinking alcohol altogether during pregnancy and arrange a follow-up session if required.
4 – 7 = medium risk of harm	 Advise that the safest option is not to drink alcohol during pregnancy. Discuss that the AUDIT-C score indicates that she is drinking at a level of increasing risk for her health and if scoring above 5 at high risk for the baby's health. Advise that the risk of harm to the developing fetus increases with increasing amounts and frequency of alcohol consumption. Discuss the effects of current alcohol consumption levels and outline health concerns for both herself and her baby. Reinforce the benefits of stopping drinking at any stage during her pregnancy to minimise further risk to herself and her baby. Ask her how she feels about stopping drinking or cutting down and establish: Positives and negatives of taking action How confident she is in being able to stop or cut down Tips, strategies and plans for taking action If she would like assistance, including from support networks and partners Offer to arrange referral if it is determined that she requires this
8+ = high risk of harm	 Discuss that the AUDIT-C score indicates that she is drinking alcohol at a level of high risk for her health and high risk for the baby's health. Discuss the positives and negatives of taking action and determine what assistance she requires to be able to stop or cut down. Refer to a specialist alcohol service as she may be at risk of alcohol dependence. Specialist support should be organised for her before advising her to stop or cut down her alcohol consumption, as without support alcohol withdrawal can be dangerous to both her health and the baby's health.

review of existing alcohol consumption in pregnancy measures as part of the 'Asking QUestions During Pregnancy' study?; Drug and Alcohol Office 'Promoting Healthy Women and Pregnancies resource for professionals'⁷ and AUDIT-C advice from Alcohol and Pregnancy and Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder: a Resource for Health Professionals.⁸

About the Women Want to Know project

The Women Want to Know project was developed by the Foundation for Alcohol Research and Education (FARE) in collaboration with leading health professional bodies across Australia.

The Women Want to Know project is funded by the Australian Government Department of Health.

For more information on the Women Want to Know project visit www.alcohol.gov.au

Information on referral points to specialist services for each state and territory are available at www.alcohol.gov.au



Change, G. (2004). Screening and brief intervention in prenatal care settings. Alcohol Research and Health: the Journal of the National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism. 28 Vol 2. 80-84.
 Dawson, D. Grant, B., Stinson, F. and Zhou, Y. (2005). Effectiveness of the derived Alcohol Use Disorder Identification Test (AUDIT-C) in screening for alcohol use disorders and risky drinking the US general population. Alcohol Clinical and Experimental Research Vol 29, No 5. Pp. 844-854.
 Murdoch Children's Research Institute (2010). Alcohol in Pregnancy: What questions should we be asking? Report to the Commonwealth Department of Health and Ageing. AQUA Project (Asking QUestions about Alcohol in pregnancy), Victoria.
 National Health and Medical Research Council (2009). *Australian Guidelines to Reduce Health Risks from Drinking Alcohol*. Commonwealth of Australia. Canberra.
 Australian Government webpage: Standard drinks guide: http://www.alcohol.gov.au/internet/alcohol/publishing.nsf/Content/drinksguide-cnt
 Commonwealth General Practice Research Practice Rese

Australian Government Wepage: Standard brinks glube: http://www.aucondc.gov.au/internet/aucond/publishing.ns//Content/prinksglube-cht Commonwealth Government Department of Health and Australian General Practice Network (2009) Lifescripts resources: Alcohol methodology card to help patient's reduce health risks from alcohol. Drug and Alcohol Office (2013). Strong Spirit Strong Future: promoting healthy women and pregnancies resource for professionals. Drug and Alcohol Office, Perth. Western Australia Alcohol and Pregnancy Project (2009). Alcohol and Pregnancy and Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder: a Resource for Health Professionals. Telethon Institute for Child Health Research http://alcoholpregnancy.childhealthresearch.org.au/media/68501/2011_booklet_for_health_professionals.pdf

Appendix 4: FASD Education Program Plan

FASD Education Program Plan

1. Identifying your target audience(s) (Hint - who do you want the project and its message to reach?)

Who are they? (e.g. pregnant women; women of childbearing age; men; grandmothers; health professionals); where do they live and/or how are they connected? (e.g. by a sporting activity); what might influence their behaviour? (consider the blockers discussed in Module 2).

2. Project goal

What needs to change? (consider the blockers discussed in Module 2); what is measurable? (e.g. how much? By when?).

3. Message

What is it that you want to tell your audiences?; what do you want them to know or do as a result of your project?

103

4. Strategies & Activities

What actions contribute to the programs goal?; how will you do this? (e.g. by [timeframe] we will hold [number] of [activities])

5. Monitoring and evaluation (Hint - How will you measure the success of your project?)

List the indicators you will use to measure changes made by your program.

List the things you will do. For example: review what you did and write a report. Ask the people in your target audience to answer some questions. Have another person external to your program evaluate your program.

How will you do this? List the things you need to do and who will be responsible for doing them. You should include how much money and time is needed to do this.

What will you do with this information? You could write a report for the agency that provided the funding for your program, use the information to make changes to the program and run it again, give the information to another organisation that is going to run this program again or run a similar program, and/or share the information with your community.

104

Appendix 5: FASD Support Services

FASD Support Services
1. What can you do? (Hint – with individuals or in group sessions)
2. What can other staff at your service do? (Hint – with individuals or in group sessions)
3. What visiting services do you have available to you?
4. What external services do you available to support yourself, your clients, and your health service?
105

Appendix 6: Scenarios for Module 4

Scenario One

There has been a recent increase in the number of young women requesting an Implanon removal at your health service. As a local community member you're also aware that there has been an increase in partying among the young people in your community. It is well known that a large amount of alcohol, tobacco and marijuana is consumed at these parties.

Complete your FASD Education Program Plan:

- 1. Who are your "primary" and "secondary" audiences?
 - Complete step 1 'Identifying your target audience(s)'
- 2. What needs to change, how much and by when?
 - Complete step 2 'Project goal'
- 3. What are your key messages?
 - Complete step 3 'Message'.
- 4. How you will you do it?
 - Complete step 4 'Strategies and activities'
- 5. How will you know you've achieved change?
 - $\circ~$ Complete step 5 'Monitoring and evaluation'

Consider:

 \bigcirc

- What are the potential implications of the decrease in contraceptive use and increase in alcohol, tobacco and marijuana use?
- What other services, settings and programs could you link in with?

0000000000000000

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

• Which resources in the FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources package would be useful?

106

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$

 \odot

Scenario Two

During your latest reporting period you have noticed a significant increase in cases of STDs and STIs in the young clients seen at your health service. As a local community member you're also aware that there has been an increase in partying among the young people in your community. It is well known that a large amount of alcohol, tobacco and marijuana is consumed at these parties.

Complete your FASD Education Program Plan:

- 1. Who are your "primary" and "secondary" audiences?
 - Complete step 1 'Identifying your target audience(s)'
- 2. What needs to change, how much and by when?
 - Complete step 2 'Project goal'
- 3. What are your key messages?
 - Complete step 3 'Message'.
- 4. How you will you do it?
 - Complete step 4 'Strategies and activities'
- 5. How will you know you've achieved change?
 - Complete step 5 'Monitoring and evaluation'

Consider:

- Why might the young people in your community not be using contraception?
- When is a good time to talk to young people about their contraceptive use?
- What other services, settings and programs could you link in with?
- Which resources in the FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources package would be useful?

107

Scenario Three

Your team has been invited to attend a health information session that has been organised for the local men's football teams. You and three others from your health service will be given 30 minutes each to discuss a range of health topics that you feel would be relevant to the men. This discussion can be done in any format you like and can include activities and resources.

Complete your FASD Education Program Plan:

- 1. Who are your "primary" and "secondary" audiences?
 - Complete step 1 'Identifying your target audience(s)'
- 2. What needs to change, how much and by when?
 - Complete step 2 'Project goal'
- 3. What are your key messages?
 - Complete step 3 'Message'.
- 4. How you will you do it?
 - Complete step 4 'Strategies and activities'
- 5. How will you know you've achieved change?
 - Complete step 5 'Monitoring and evaluation'

Consider:

- What health topics could you use this opportunity to discuss?
- Who else from your health service could attend with you?
- What other services, settings and programs could you link with?
- Which resources in the FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources package would be useful?

108

Scenario Four

As a maternal health worker, you have been consistently asking all of your pregnant clients about their alcohol consumption and advising that there is no known safe amount of alcohol that can be consumed during pregnancy. During these conversations majority of your pregnant clients express shock at the recommendations for alcohol consumption as they've had very different advice given to them from other women in their social networks, particularly older women who have experienced a pregnancy themselves. A number of your clients have found it difficult to deal with the pressures to consume alcohol that are put onto them by these older women who continue to explain that they drank during their pregnancies and their kids are fine.

Complete your FASD Education Program Plan:

- 1. Who are your "primary" and "secondary" audiences?
 - Complete step 1 'Identifying your target audience(s)'
- 2. What needs to change, how much and by when?
 - Complete step 2 'Project goal'
- 3. What are your key messages?
 - Complete step 3 'Message'.
- 4. How you will you do it?
 - Complete step 4 'Strategies and activities'
- 5. How will you know you've achieved change?
 - Complete step 5 'Monitoring and evaluation'

Consider:

- What can you do to help your pregnant clients to deal with these social pressures?
- What could be done to prevent this from continuing?
- What other services, settings and programs could you link with?
- Which resources in the FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources package would be useful?

Scenario Five

During your latest reporting period, you noticed that there are minimal records being kept on the alcohol consumption rates of the pregnant clients seen at your health service. When you raise this at your team meeting you're told by over a third of your colleagues that they don't feel comfortable talking about alcohol consumption with their pregnant clients because they fear it will make the woman feel judged and they're not sure what information they should be providing the women anyway. The rest of your colleagues say that they are asking their pregnant clients about their alcohol consumption but they don't know how to record this in your online system.

Complete your FASD Education Program Plan:

- 1. Who are your "primary" and "secondary" audiences?
 - Complete step 1 'Identifying your target audience(s)'
- 2. What needs to change, how much and by when?
 - Complete step 2 'Project goal'
- 3. What are your key messages?
 - Complete step 3 'Message'.
- 4. How you will you do it?
 - Complete step 4 'Strategies and activities'
- 5. How will you know you've achieved change?
 - $\circ~$ Complete step 5 'Monitoring and evaluation'

Consider:

- What could be done to increase the rate of your fellow health professionals discussing alcohol consumption with their pregnant clients?
- What changes should to be made to improve your records of alcohol consumption?
- What other services, settings and programs could you link in with?

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

• Which resources in the FASD Prevention and Health Promotion Resources package would be useful

110

 \bigcirc

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$